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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Center Meeting of the Religious Society of Friends is one 
mile east of Centerville on a knoll where Adani's Dam Road meets Center 
Meeting Road. It was called Center because it was between New Ark 
Union (now Carrcroft) and Old Kennett Meeting. The brick^building., 
built in 1796, is rectangular in plan, with pitched roof and brick 
chimney at either end. Sheds are attached to the East and West sides. 
These open on the front to shelter horses with carriages. Six stalls 
with staggered posts, supporting trussed roof construction and slot 
windows, look through the stone retaining wall towards the graveyard 
on the North side of the Meeting. The East sheds are similar, but 
several end bays are enclosed for a storeroom.

The Meeting House itself is 41 T across the front and 32' wide. 
The front and back elevations are similar with a window on either side 
of a bifolding paneled door in each quadrant. Shutters are paneled in 
front and flush on the backs, supported on strap hinges and pintles. 
The four South windows are three panes longer than those on the North. 
The ends are bare except for access doors to the attic, one on each 
end. A wood porch on the South front was added in the 1870's. It is 
brick paned, edged with stone.......

On the interior, the Meeting is divided in half by a wood single 
board partition with panels that move, but now stand open. Two aisles 
run South to North connecting the doors. Seven rows of benches face 
three which are raised on the North side. There are three risers with 
one row of benches on each. At each end of the building is a stone 
and^wppd ,b,in,,.,, The; ,irj3>n j5jt\6ve^ -pn the East end is a plate stove marked 
Charles Brooke, Jr., and Co., Rock Furnace. Around the room is beaded 
s.^ea^thifig ,.t9 .chair^ra^l ; height rf , Th^vEjast side remains in i,t<& ioriginal 
state with simple benches brought from the log meeting house which 
preceded this building. The wood trim, sheathing, and flooring all 
remain as they were in this end.

On the North side, the graveyard slopes gently across the hill 
with low stone markers and large old box bushes. It is enclosed by a 
double pitched stone rubble wall with a cement poured cap.

Across the road is a school house built by the Friends for their 
children and those of the community. It is square with a pitched 
roof and a lunette in the gable to" the West. The Meeting House remain;? 
original except where minor repairs have been made or a porch added, 
however, the school house has suffered many changes and is now being 
used as a house. Apparently repairs are about to be undertaken. 
Restoration would be a rather simple matter at this time.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ^- "'^,'

Center Meeting was the first Quaker Meeting o^^the West Bank of 
the Brandywine in Delaware. It started before Old "S^eJtejSs Church in 
Wilmington began, and it is still in use. Although it "paVsed moments 
of small activity, it has never been "laid down" since its inception 
in 1690. For its purity of style, for its long and representative 
history it is most significant. It is recorded as a "Delaware 
Heritage Building" and has been documented in the Historical Buildings 
of America Survey.

After the arrival of William Penn, the Brandywine was settled 
largely by Quakers. Those living in Christiana Hundred on the West 
Bank went regularly until 1687 to the otherside of the Brandywine 
for meeting at New Ark Union (now Carrcroft) in Brandywine Hundred. 
However, in winter, it was not easy to cross the river and in 1687 
George Harlan petitioned for a meeting on the West Bank due to the 
"dangerousness of the ford." In 1690y 1 the ̂ M'eetiftig became permanent, 
taking place in nearby Quaker homes. Alphonsus Kirk gave six acres 

>l ^f larid in 1700. A log building that^is'nowrgorie', was erected"in 
1711 near where now stands the present brick meeting house built in 
1796. Members united to help build this larger church. THe ; list of 
their names exemplify the wealth and industry of that time on the 
rural banks of the Delaware Brandywine: Caleb Kirk, Samuel Gre.gsy^ 
TJi-ojii^s^JHtoJ.^ Dawes, Thomas^ Wilson- -to name a few. 
Names indicative of the wealth of the Brandywine that was able to 
construct a building of their faith that stands and is used today.

Across the road is an example of the Friends early interest in 
education, an innovating program of public education that was begun 
iji 1780, This school was built in(T80Q., Later it was helped by 
JSitpine^JBJ^jej^oian who was closely associated with the du Pont family 
and Company and was interested in the better education for the 
community. The school was state run from 1854 until twenty-five 
years ago. It is now a family house, but still belongs to the Friends



Primary Sources
Records of Center Meeting are in the Swarthmore College Library,

Swarthmore, Pennsylvania. 
Secondary Sources

Scharf, J. Thomas, History of Delaware, 1609-1888, 2 Vols,,
Richards and Co., Philadelphia, Pa., 1888.

Zebley, Frank R., Along the Brandywine, Wilmington, Delaware, 1940. 
Interview with Mr. John V. Hollingsworth, Fairville, Pa., Chairman

of Records of the Western Quarterly : for1 "the -Religious Society
of Friends,
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Eleanor M. Webster, Consultant
ORGAN! ZATION

Tri-County Conservancy of th'g' Brah&ywinei fy\ -> Augu.st;> 1'970
STREET AND NUMBER:

Box 141
CITY OR TOWN:

Chadds Ford

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 

in the National Register and certify that it has been 

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set 

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 

level of significaoeesyOf this nomination is:

National JT\ ) State 00 Local n

Name

Historic Registrar, 
Title State Liaison Officer

Date July 1, 1971
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